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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
 
Attorney General of California 
 
LINDAL. SUN . 
 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
 
MICHAEL A. CACCIOTI 
 
Deputy Attorney General 
 
State Bar No. 129533 
 

300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
 
Telephone: (213) 897-2932 

. 
 

Facsimile: (213) 897-2804 · 
 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORETHE 
 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

TILLIE HANVEY, aka TILLIE MERAZ, 
aka OTILLIA MERAZ, aka OTILIA . 
HANVEY 
636 Egan Avenue 
 
Beaumont, CA 92223 
 

Pharmacy Technician Registration No. 
 
TCH 8411 
 

Respondent. 

Complainant alleges: 

Case No. 4560 
 

ACCUSATION 

PARTIES . 

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant);brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity 

as the Executive Officer of the Board of P{mrmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs (Board). 

2. On or about July 12, i993, the Board issued Pharmacy Technician Registration 

Number TCH 8411 to Tillie Hanvey, aka Tillie Meraz, alca Otillia Meraz, aka Otilia Hanvey 

(Respondent). The Pharmacy Technician Registration was in full force and effect at all times 

' relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on August 31, 2014, unless renewed. 
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JURISDICTION 

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board, tmder the authority of the following 

laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated, 

STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

4. ·Section 490 states, in pertinent part: 

"(a) In addition to any other action that a board is permitted to take against a licensee, a 

bo11rd may suspend or revoke a license on the grow1d that the licensee has been convicted of a 

crinle, if the Crime IS StlbStantially related to the qualifications, fw~ctions, or duties of the business 

or profession for which the license was issued. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a board may exercise any at1thority to 

. discipline a licensee for conviction of a crime that is independent ofthe authority granted llilder 
' 

subdivision (a) only if the crime is substantially related to the quali±lcations, functions, or duties 

of the business or profession for which the ·licensee's liceri$e was issued. 

(c) A conviction within the meaning of this section means a plea or verdict of guilty or a 

conviction followiog a plea ofnolo contendere. Any action thata·board is pennitted to take· 

following the establishment of:a conviction may be taken when the time for appeal has elapsed, or 

the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal, or when an order granting probation.is 

made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under the 

provisions of Section1203.4 ofthe Penal Code." 

5. . Section 492 states: · 

"Notwithstanding any other pr?vision of law, successful CQ:tnpletion ofany diversion 

program under the Penal Code, or successful completion of all a) coho! and drug problem . . ' . . . ;•, . ' 

assessment program under Article 5 (commencing with section2,3249.50) of Chapter 12 of 

Division!! of the Vehicle Code, shall not prohibit any agency established under Division2 

([Healing Arts] commencing Vflth Section 500) of this code, or allY initiative act referred to in that 

division, from taking disciplinary action against a licensee or from denying a license for 
• . . t 

professional misconduct, notwithstanding that evidence of that misconduct may be recorded in a 

record pertaining to an arrest. 
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This section shall not be construed to apply to any dmg diversion program operated by any' 

a·gency established 1.\nder Division2 (commencing with Section .500) ·of this code, or any 

·',., 
initiative act referred to in that division," 

6. Section4300,'subdivision (a); states that "[e]very license issued may be suspended or 

r evoked," 

7. Section 4300,1 of the Code states: 
,, 

"The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of~ board-issued license by 

op~ration of law or by order or decision of the boaid or a court of law, the piitcemeht of a license 

on a retired status, or U1e vohmtary smrender of a license by a licensee shall not deprive the. board 

ofjtu·isdictionto 90mmence or proceed with any investigation of, or action or disciplinary 

proceeding against, the licensee or to render a decision suspending or revoking the license." 

8, Section 4301 states, ln pertinentpait: 

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of1.mprofessional 

conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake. 

u;lprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any.ofthe following: 

(f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or 

·corruption; whether the act is committed in the course of relationsas a licensee or otherwise, and 
. ' . 
 

whether the act is. a felony or misdemeanor or not. 
 

(h) The aclministering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any dangerous 

drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be dangerous or injurious to 

oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other person or to the public, or 
' 

to the extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to thepublic the 

practice. authorized by the license. 

0) The violation of any of the statutes ofthis state, or any other state, or of the United 

States regulating controlled substances and dangerous dmgs. 
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(k) The conviction of more than one misdemelll1or or any felony involving the use, 

· consnmption, or self-administration of any dangerous drug or alcoholic beverage, or any 

combination of those substances. 

(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the ·qualifications, functions, and 

duties of a licenst;e tmder this chapter, The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 

(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled 

substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or 

dangerous dmgs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the · 

record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. 

The board may inquire into the circumstances surrotmding the commission of the crime,in order 

to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances 

or dangerous dmgs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the 

qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee tmder this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or 

a conviction following a plea of nolo col)tendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning 

of this provision. The board may take action when the time for ~ppeal ])as elapsed, or the 

judgment cif conviction has been affhmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made 

·suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203 '.4 of 

1he Penal Code allqwing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea ofnot 

guilty, or setting asipe theverdict of guilty, or'dismissing _\he ac~usation, information, or 

indictment. 

(o) . Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the 

violation of or co~spiring to violate any provision or term of this, chapter or of the applicable 

federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, includingr<'lgulations established by 

the board or by any other st'ate or federal regulatory agency." . . . 

REGULATORY PROVISION 

9. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section177Q, states: 

"For.the purpose of denial, suspei1sion, or revocation of a J,li'll'Sonal or facility license 
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licensee or registrant to perform the functions authorized by ~is license or registration in a manner . 

consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare." 

COST RECOVERY 6 ,. . - .: . ' 	 . 

7 10. Section 125.3 states, in pertinent part, that the Board 'may requesfthe administrative 

law judge to direct. a licentiate found to have committed a vioh\tion or violations oftiie licensing 8 

act to pay a sum hot to exceed the reasonable costs of the investf~ation and enforcement of the 

case. 

9 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE II 

(Convictions of Substantially-Related~rimes) 12 . 	 ~ 

13 11. 	 Respondent is subject todisciplinary action under sections 490, 4300, and.4301, 
' 

14 subdivision(!), in conjunction with California Code ofRegulatiqns, title 16, section 1770, on the 

grounds oftmprofessional conduct, in that Respondent was convicted ofa crime substantially · 

16 related to .the qualifications, functions, or duties of a registered pharmacy technician which to a 

17 substantial degree evidence her present or potential unfitness to perform the fui:tction~ authorized 

f8 by her registration in a manner consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare, as follows: .... 	 ., 

19 a. . On or about February 01, 2012, aft.er pleading guilty, ~espondent was convicted of 

one misdemeanor cotmt of violating Penal Code section 503 [em]Jezzlement], in the criminal · 
. 	 . ·:: ' . 

pi·oceeding entitled The People ofthe State ofC:alifornla v. OtiliaHanvey, aka Tillie Hanvey, aka 

22 

21 

Tillie Meraz, aka Otillia Meraz (Super. Ct. Riverside County, 20,11, No. BAM1200006). The 

court sentenced Respondent to serve 5 days in jail, placed h~t o11 probation with terms and 23 
I . 

conditions for a period of 36 months and finecl her. The circumstances surrounding the 24 ' 	 ,,. 

. conviction are tl1at on or about November 29, 2011, a Beaum.(mt ]:'alice Department Officer was 

dispatched to a Wal-Mart Supercenfer department store, in tl1e city of Beaumont, California, 26 

regm·ding an emhezzlement, by an employee .working as a pharmacy technician in their pharmacy 27 

28 . department frmn th() period of approximately August 12, 20ll.through October 04, 2011. The 

5 
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employee was later identified as the Respondent, who was obsel'ved in the store surveillance 

cmi:lera; taking cash from customers and placing it in her sweater pocket instead of the cash 

register, The Respondent admitted to Wal-Mart's two Asset Protection Coordinators that she had 

stolen money from Wal-Mart on five.different occasions. The Respondent made a written 

statementmid was subsequently convicted of Penal Code sectiori'·503. 

b. On or about May 05, 2009,.'after pleading guilty, Respondent was convicted of one 

misdemeanor count of violating Vehicle Code section 23152, subdivision (a) [driving a vehicle' 

while under the infl~ence of an.alooholic beverage and I or drugs]; and one misdemeanor count of 

violating Vehicle Code section 23152, subdivision (b) [driving a vehicle while having 0.08% and 

more by weight of alcohol in her blood], in the criminal proceeding entitled The People ofthe 

·State ofCalifornia v, Otilia Hanvey, aka Tillie Hanvey, aka Tillie Mermt, akd Otillia Meraz 

(Super. Ct. Riverside county, 2009, No. BAM038125). The CO]Jrt sentenced Respondent to serve 

· 15 clays in jail, placed her on probation with terms and. conditions.for a period of 36 months and 

fined her. The circmnstances surrounding the conviction are tbat,on or about February 25, 2009, 

· a Biu1ning California Highway Patrol Officer was dispatched to investigate a traffic collision. 

The officer arrived at the scene and observed the Respondent sitting in the driver's seat with her 
' 

seat beli trapped in her vehic.le. The officer made contact witl1 R,rspondent and detected an odor 

of an alcoholic beverage emitting fn.nn R.esponclent' s breath and,person. The officer also 

observed Respondent to have slow, slurred speech. The officer conducted a limited field sobriety 

test, and determined that the Respondent was driving a vehicle while under the influence of an 

alcoholic. beverage. The Respondent dlll'ing her booking, agreed to a blood test with a result of 
'. . . . ' . 

0.08% andmore by weight of alcohol in her blood. 

·SECOND CAUSE.;FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Convictions Involving Use of Alcohol auf'~./ or Drugs) 

. 12. Responclenfis s,ubject to disciplinary action under s~ctions 490 lind 4301, subdivision 

(k), on th.e grounds of unprofessional conduct, in that Responclei)t was convicted of a <;time that 
.- . . . . ' .. 

involved the use of al~ohol and I or drugs. Complainant refers to,. and by this reference 

incorporates, the allegations set forth above in pru:agraph II, subP,aragraph (b), inclusive, as 
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though set forth fl!IIY herein. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE· 

(Dangerous .Use of Alcohol ancl I or Drugs) 

13. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under s~2tions 4300 and 4301, 

subdivision (h), on the grotn1ds ofunprofessional conduct, in that Respondent did use alcohol and 

I or drugs in a dangerous marmer. Complainant refers to, and.by ;this reference incorporates, the 

allegations set forth above in paragraph 11, subparagraph (b), inchtsive, as though se.t forth fully 

herein. 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Acts Involving Dishone~ty) 

14. Respondentia subject to disciplinary actim1tmder sections 4300 and 4301, 

subdivision (f), on the grounds ofll.l1professional conduct, in that Respondent committed an act 

that involved moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud; deceit, and I or corruption. Complainant refers 

to, and by this reference incorporates, the allegations set forth abpve in paragraph 11, 

subparagraph (a), inclusive, as though set forth fully herein. 

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
 

(Violation of Pharmacy Act Statutes and. Regulations) 
 
. i 

15. Respondent is subject to disciplinary actionlU1der section4301, subdivisions (j) and 

( o ), on the grounds of unprofessional conduct, in that Respondent committed acts that violated the 

Phannacy Law and regulations relating thereto. Complainant refers to, and by this reference 

incorporates, the allegations set forth above in paragraphs 11 through 14, inclusive, as though set 

forth fully herein. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

and that following the hearing, the Board issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy TechnicianRegistration No. TCH 8411, issued to 

Tillie Hanvey, aka Tillie Meraz, aka Otillia Meraz, aka Oti!ia H~vey; 

2. Ordering. Tillie Hanvey, aka Tillie Meraz, aka OtilliaMerat., aka Otilia Hanvey to pay ' . 
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the Board the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcem~nt of this case, pursuant to 

Business and Professions Code Section 125.3; and 

3: 

DATED: 

LA2013508828 
JC 

Execu · fficet· 
 
Board of Pharmacy 
 
Department of Consmner Affairs 
 
State ofCalifornia. 
 
Complainant 

i­
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